
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
CITY OF BAY CITY 
Tuesday, August 22, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | 1901 5th Street 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Mayor: Robert K Nelson  
Mayor Pro Tem: Blayne Finlay 
Council Members: Benjamin Flores, Bradley Westmoreland, Becca Sitz, Jim Folse 

Vision Statement 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a 
diverse culture that is proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered 
community where citizens are involved in the future development of our city. We desire 
our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in the community in which we live. Visitors 
are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment and amenities the 
citizens and business owners have created together. 

AGENDA 

 

 THE FOLLOWING ITEM WILL BE ADDRESSED AT THIS OR ANY OTHER MEETING OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL UPON THE REQUEST OF THE MAYOR, ANY MEMBER(S) OF 
COUNCIL AND/OR THE CITY ATTORNEY: 

 

  ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE MAYOR THAT COUNCIL WILL RETIRE INTO CLOSED SESSION FOR 
CONSULTATION WITH CITY ATTORNEY ON MATTERS IN WHICH THE DUTY OF THE ATTORNEY 
TO THE CITY COUNCIL UNDER THE TEXAS DISCIPLINARY RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 
OF THE STATE BAR OF TEXAS CLEARLY CONFLICTS WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT (TITLE 5, 
CHAPTER 551, SECTION 551.071(2) OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE). 

  

CALL TO ORDER AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE 
Texas State Flag Pledge: "Honor The Texas Flag; I Pledge Allegiance To Thee, Texas, One 
State Under God, One And Indivisible.”  

Mayor Pro Tem Finlay 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City of Bay City is committed to fostering future economic growth by collaborating with our 
citizens, employers, current and future businesses, as well as the Community and Economic 
Development Centers. We strive to deliver superior municipal services and to invest in quality-
of-life initiatives such as housing, businesses, jobs and activities for all citizens. We make a 
concerted effort to respond to resident’s concerns in a timely and professional manner in order 
to achieve customer satisfaction. 

Mayor Pro Tem Finlay 

Page 1



Agenda City Council Regular Meeting August 22, 2023 
 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
State Law prohibits any deliberation of or decisions regarding items presented in public 
comments. City Council may only make a statement of specific factual information given in 
response to the inquiry; recite an existing policy; or request staff places the item on an agenda 
for a subsequent meeting. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM CITY MANAGER 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, COUNCIL MEMBERS AND CITY MANAGER 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

1. City Council Regular Meeting minutes of July 25, 2023. 

2. City Council Regular Meeting minutes of August 8, 2023. 

3. City Council Workshop minutes of August 10, 2023. 

DEPARMENT REPORTS 

4. Public Works Reports and Updates. Krystal Mason, Assistant Public Works Director 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

5. Tax ~ Consider placing a proposal to adopt a Tax Rate for the 2024 Fiscal Year 
as an action item on the agenda of a future Council meeting, specifying therein 
the desired tax rate and publishing notice thereof. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

6. Tax ~ Consider setting a Public Hearing on the Proposed 2024 Fiscal Year Tax 
Rate for Thursday, September 7, 2023. Scotty Jones, Finance director 

7. Budget ~ Consider setting a Public Hearing on the City of Bay City's proposed 
2024 Fiscal Year Budget and the City of Bay City's Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan for Thursday, September 7, 2023. Scotty Jones, 
Finance Director 

8. Budget ~ Consider setting a Public Hearing on the Bay City Community 
Development Corporation's proposed 2024 Fiscal Year Budget for Thursday, 
September 7, 2023. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

9. Services ~ Discuss, Consider, and/or Approve Harrison, Waldrop, and Uherek 
L.L.P. to provide Audit Services for the City of Bay City for the Year Ending 
September 30, 2023. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

10. Bid ~ Consider and award of a bid regarding purchase of the surface only of real 
property (no improvements owned by City) located at 2318 Avenue K, Bay City 
Texas, described as Bay City Original Townsite, Block 145, Lot 9-12. 

Page 2



Agenda City Council Regular Meeting August 22, 2023 
 

 
CLOSED / EXECUTIVE SESSION 

RECONVENE AND ACTION 

ADJOURNMENT  

AGENDA NOTICES: 

Attendance By Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members of other 
city board, commissions and/or committees may attend the meeting in numbers that may 
constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions and/or committees. Notice is hereby 
given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a meeting of the other 
boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance. The 
members of the boards, commissions and/or committees may participate in discussions on the 
same items listed on the agenda, which occur at the meeting, but no action will be taken by such 
in attendance unless such item and action is specifically provided for on an agenda for that 
board, commission or committee subject to the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 

This is to certify that the above notice of a Regular Called Council Meeting was posted on the 
front window of the City Hall of the City of Bay City, Texas on Friday, August 18, 2023 before 
6:00 p.m. Any questions concerning the above items, please contact the Mayor and City 
Manager’s office at (979) 245-2137. 

Page 3



 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  JULY 25, 2023 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

City Council Regular Meeting 6:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

  

 

  

  Mayor   

  Robert K. Nelson   

Mayor Pro Tem  Councilman  Councilwoman 

Blayne Finlay  Bradley Westmoreland  Becca Sitz 

Councilman    Councilman 

Jim Folse    Benjamin Flores 

 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a diverse culture that is 
proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered community where citizens are involved in 

the future development of our city. We desire our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in the community in 
which we live. Visitors are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment and amenities the 

citizens and business owners have created together. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  July 25, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Robert K. Nelson at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT 
Mayor Robert K. Nelson 
Mayor Pro Tem Blayne Finlay 
Councilman Benjamin Flores 
Councilman Jim Folse 
Councilman Brad Westmoreland 
Councilwoman Becca Sitz 
 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE 
Texas State Flag Pledge: "Honor The Texas Flag; I Pledge Allegiance To Thee, Texas, One 
State Under God, One And Indivisible.”  

Councilman Bradley Westmoreland 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City of Bay City is committed to fostering future economic growth by collaborating with our 
citizens, employers, current and future businesses, as well as the Community and Economic 
Development Centers. We strive to deliver superior municipal services and to invest in quality-
of-life initiatives such as housing, businesses, jobs and activities for all citizens. We make a 
concerted effort to respond to resident’s concerns in a timely and professional manner in order 
to achieve customer satisfaction. 

Councilman Bradley Westmoreland 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Finlay to approve the agenda, Seconded by Councilman 
Westmoreland. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, 
Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman Finlay, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
David Torrez concerned about potholes, streets and Girl's Softball being moved. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM CITY MANAGER 

There were no acknowledgements. 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, COUNCIL MEMBERS AND CITY MANAGER 

There were no items from Council. 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

Page 5

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  July 25, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

1. City Council Workshop Meeting minutes of June 6, 2023. 

2. City Council Workshop Meeting minutes of July 11, 2023. 

3. City Council Regular Meeting minutes of July 11, 2023. 

4. Accounts Payable, Direct Payable and Utility Refunds for April, May, and June 
2023 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Finlay, Seconded by Councilman Folse. Voting Yea: Mayor 
Nelson, Mayor Pro Tem Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman 
Finlay, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

5. Municipal Court 2nd Fiscal Quarter update 

Katy Plunkett, Court Administrator, presented the Municipal Court update, correcting 
that it was the 3rd quarter and not the 2nd. 

6. Day of The Dead Festival update 

Darve Smith, Tourism Manager, presented the Day of The Dead Festival update, 
stating that it will be a 2 day event on November 3rd and 4th. They have been 
advertising and different committees formed to carry out responsibilities. 

7. Library Quarterly Report and Updates 

Samantha Denbow, Library Director, presented the Library Quarterly Report and 
Updates. 

8. Public Works Reports and Updates 

Krystal Mason, Assistant Public Works Director, presented the Public Works Reports 
and Updates. Discussion included the issue with the use of chip seal on some streets. 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

9. Appointment ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the appointment of Candice L. 
Brown and Abigail R. Coates to the Public Housing Authority. Robert K. Nelson, 
Mayor 

Motion made by Councilman Folse to approve the appointments, Seconded by 
Councilwoman Sitz. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman  Folse, Councilwoman 
Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor Pro Tem Finlay, Councilman Flores. Motion 
carried. 

Page 6

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  July 25, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 4 

10. Ordinance ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve an Ordinance amending the City 
Code of Ordinances relating sections of Chapter 38, Article V "Noise" including 
sections shown on the attached "Exhibit A"; providing for penalties; providing 
an effective date.  

Edward Guzman, Police Lieutenant, presented the amended ordinance. 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitzto approve the ordinance, Seconded by 
Councilman Folse. 
Voting Yea: Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, 
Mayor Pro Tem Finlay 
Voting Nay: Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 
 

11. Agreement ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve an Interlocal Agreement 
between the City of Bay City and Matagorda County providing for repairs of 
certain length of 12th street. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz  to approve the Interlocal Agreement, Seconded 
by Mayor Pro Tem Finlay. Voting Yea: Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, 
Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor Pro Tem Finlay. Voting Nay: Councilman Flores. 
Motion carried. 

12. Report ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the City's Quarterly Financial and 
Investment Report for the quarter ending June 30, 2023. Scotty Jones, Finance 
Director 

Motion made by Councilman Westmoreland to approve the City's Quarterly Financial 
and Investment Report, Seconded by Councilman Folse. Voting Yea: Mayor 
Nelson,  Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor 
Pro Tem Finlay, Councilman Flores 

13. Bid Rejection ~ Discuss, consider and/or reject bid submitted by Matula & 
Matula Construction Inc. for the Hardeman Park Soccer Field Light Light Poles 
Project. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

Motion made by Councilman Folse to reject bid submitted by Matula & Matula 
Construction, Seconded by Councilwoman Sitz. Voting Yea: Mayor 
Nelson, Councilman  Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor 
Pro Tem Finlay, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

CLOSED / EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council adjourned into an executive session at 7:40 p.m. 

14. Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.072 
(Deliberation regarding Real Property). 

Page 7

ITEM #1.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  July 25, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 5 

RECONVENE AND ACTION 

Council reconvened back into regular session at 8:06 pm. Council took no action. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Finlay to adjourn, Seconded by Councilman 
Westmoreland. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson,  Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, 
Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor Pro Tem Finlay, Councilman Flores. Motion carried and the 
meeting adjourned at 8:06 p.m. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this 22nd day of August 2023. 

   

ROBERT K. NELSON, MAYOR  

CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

JEANNA THOMPSON 

CITY SECRETARY 

 

Page 8

ITEM #1.



 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  AUGUST 08, 2023 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

City Council Regular Meeting 6:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

  

 

  

  Mayor   

  Robert K. Nelson   

Mayor Pro Tem  Councilman  Councilwoman 

Blayne Finlay  Bradley Westmoreland  Becca Sitz 

Councilman    Councilman 

Jim Folse    Benjamin Flores 

 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a diverse culture that is 
proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered community where citizens are involved in 

the future development of our city. We desire our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in the community in 
which we live. Visitors are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment and amenities the 

citizens and business owners have created together. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER AND CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Robert K. Nelson at 6:00 p.m. 

PRESENT 
Mayor Robert K. Nelson 
Councilman Jim Folse 
Councilwoman Becca Sitz 
Councilman Brad Westmoreland 
Councilman Benjamin Flores 
 
ABSENT 
Mayor Pro Tem Blayne Finlay 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE 
Texas State Flag Pledge: "Honor The Texas Flag; I Pledge Allegiance To Thee, Texas, One 
State Under God, One And Indivisible.”  

Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City of Bay City is committed to fostering future economic growth by collaborating with our 
citizens, employers, current and future businesses, as well as the Community and Economic 
Development Centers. We strive to deliver superior municipal services and to invest in quality-
of-life initiatives such as housing, businesses, jobs and activities for all citizens. We make a 
concerted effort to respond to resident’s concerns in a timely and professional manner in order 
to achieve customer satisfaction. 

Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion made by Councilman Westmoreland to approve the agenda with items 4 and 5 moved 
to the start of Regular Items, Seconded by Councilwoman Sitz. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, 
Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Mayor Pro Tem Flores. 
Motion carried. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
There were no public comments. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FROM CITY MANAGER 

Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, recognized the Street Department for their work in San Jose 
subdivision. 

Page 10

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

ITEMS / COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, COUNCIL MEMBERS AND CITY MANAGER 

Councilman Jim Folse stated that he noticed Public Works working on the drainage at United 
Rentals. Councilman Flores thanked the City Manage for showing him the use of "Eye on 
Water" app that helped him monitor water use and recommend all citizens to use. 
Councilwoman Sitz requested street sweeping. 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

1. City Council Workshop meeting minutes of July 20, 2023 
 
Motion made by Councilman Folse to approve consent items, Seconded by 
Councilman Westmoreland. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, 
Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman Flores 

REGULAR ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND/OR APPROVAL 

4. PID ~ Discussion relating to the Crescent Capital Investments LLC (Russell 
Ranch) Development PID budget and comparisons. 

Marla Jasek, G&W Engineering for Crescent Capital, reviewed the probable costs, 
stating that Bay City Gas Company may cover $45,000, requirement of Lift Station 
early on has been eliminated due to gravity flow. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, 
reviewed private costs vs. public costs. 

5. Agreement ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve an amended development 
agreement in regard to development standards between the City of Bay City and 
Crescent Capital Investments LLC (Russell Ranch). Shawna Burkhart, City 
Manager 

Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, presented the amendment changing the street width 
to 28 feet. Jessica Russell, BCCDC Executive Director, added that originally this came 
up due to parking on street, a 28 foot wide road does not allow for emergency 
vehicles. Ms. Russell stated that this is something that the HOA can address and 
enforce. Anne Marie Odefey, City Attorney, reviewed other changes including 
subdivision name change from Almafi Ranch to Russell Ranch. 

Motion made by Councilman Folse, Seconded by Councilman Westmoreland. Voting 
Yea: Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman 
Flores. Voting Nay: Mayor Nelson. Motion carried. 

2. Benefits ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a fitness incentive and employee 
reimbursement of gym fees extended to Police Department staff.  

Sgt. Ruben Gutierrez, Bay City Police Department, and All-Star Fitness presented the 
fitness incentive with three options to consider. Councilman Westmoreland stated that 
a full gym is being provided in the proposed new police facility. Councilman Folse 
stated that some insurance companies add a discount for wellness and asked that we 

Page 11

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 4 

look into.  Mayor Nelson also added that no one really had an answer on how to set up 
who's paying and that he suggest city pay and deduct from employee 
checks. Councilman Westmoreland asked for more discussion during benefits 
workshop. 

3. Resolution ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a Resolution approving the 
submission of the "Lone Star Grant Program"  application under the Homeland 
Security Grants Division with the Office of the Governor Public Safety Office. 
Sgt. Chris Hadash, BCPD 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz, Seconded by Councilman Folse. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, 
Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

6. Agreement ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve an Economic Development 
Professional Services Agreement with David Pettit Economic Development, 
LLC., relating to the creation of a Public Improvement District (PID) in the City of 
Bay City, Texas. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager 

Item removed 

7. Agreement ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a Professional Services 
Payment Agreement between the City of Bay City and Bold Fox Development, 
LLC. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager 

Item removed 

8. Ordinance ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve amending the City Code of 
Ordinances relating sections of Chapter 98, Sections 98-3, 98-39, 98-123; 
Chapter 46, Section 46-21 and Chapter 62, Section 62-5; removing all references 
to Drainage District in the City of Bay City Code of Ordinances; and providing an 
effective date. Councilman Jim Folse 

Anne Marie Odefey, City Attorney, stated that the amendment does not change the 
law that requires Drainage District approval. Councilman Folse emphasized that if it’s 
already a law then it does not need to be stipulated in our ordinance. 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz, Seconded by Councilman Flores. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, 
Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 
 

9. Resolution ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a resolution authorizing the City 
of Bay City to offer Group Health Insurance to City Council members at City 
Council Member's expense. Shawna Burkhart, City Manager 

Motion made by Councilman Flores to approve the resolution, no second was offered. 
 

Page 12

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 5 

10. Grants ~ Discuss, consider, and or approve various equipment to be funded by 
the American Rescue Plan Funds and authorize staff to proceed with 
procurement. Scotty Jones, Finance Director 

Motion made by Councilman Folse to approve the 4 police units and flat bed truck and 
explore co-op with county, Seconded by Councilman Westmoreland. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman 
Westmoreland, Councilman  Flores. motion carried. 
 

11. Budget ~ Discuss and review the City's budget calendar. 

Scotty Jones, Finance Director, reviewed the revised budget calendar with Council. 
August 17th Special Called meeting to set public hearings was removed from the 
calendar due to Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, and Councilman 
Westmoreland unable to attend. 

12. Grant ~ Discussions regarding rescoping of Texas Water Development Board 
Application #2 for arsenic and other desired projects. 

Shawna Burkhart, City Manager, discussed the application with the TWDB, 
emphasizing that we are not requesting the full amount but need time to develop the 
amount needed due to rescoping of the job. 

13. Committee ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to study LCRA canals. Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

14. Committee ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to study Nile Valley Road extension. Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

15. Committee ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to study Railroad Quiet Zone. Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

16. Committee ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve the formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to study the north to east waterline roadway. Councilwoman Becca 
Sitz 

Council discuss items 13 thru 16, each introduced by Coucilwoman Sitz. 
Recommendation that members consist of Mayor, two councilmembers, BCCDC, 
EDC, and Public Works Director. 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz to approve the formation of Ad Hoc 
Committees to study LCRA canals, study Nile Valley Road extension, study Railroad 
Quiet Zone, study the north to east waterline roadway, Seconded by Councilman 
Folse. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman 
Westmoreland, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 
 

Page 13

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 6 

17. Capital Planning ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve a change from easement 
acquisitions to land acquisitions for north to east waterlines into the five (5) year 
Capital Plan. Councilwoman Becca Sitz 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz to approve adding to the Five (5) Year Capital 
Plan $250,000.00 for any land acquisitions for the north to east waterlines, Seconded 
by Councilman Flores. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman 
Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 
 

18. Policy ~ Discuss, consider, and/or approve amending the appointment of 
Council Members as Liaisons and the City Administrative Divisions. Jeanna 
Thompson, City Secretary 

Motion made by Councilman Folse, Seconded by Councilman Westmoreland. Voting 
Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman 
Westmoreland, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

CLOSED / EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Council adjourned into an executive session at 8:00 p.m. 

19. Executive Session pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.072 
(Deliberation regarding Real Property). 

20. Personnel ~ Closed meeting to discuss personnel matters in accordance with 
Title 5, Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code (To discuss appointment, 
employment, evaluation, responsibilities, and duties of an officer or employee: 
City Manager 

21. Personnel ~ Closed meeting to discuss personnel matters in accordance with 
Title 5, Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code (To discuss appointment, 
employment, evaluation, responsibilities, and duties of an officer or employee: 
Public Works Director 

RECONVENE AND ACTION 

Council reconvened back into regular session at 9:43 pm. Council took no action on items #19 
and #21. 

Motion on item #20 made by Councilwoman Sitz to approve $5,000.00 salary increase for the 
City Manager, Seconded by Councilman Folse. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Councilman Folse, 
Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilman Flores. Motion carried. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Folse to adjourn, Seconded by Councilwoman Sitz. Voting 
Yea: Mayor Nelson, Mayor Pro Tem Folse, Councilwoman Sitz, Councilman Westmoreland, 
Councilman Flores. Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:44 p.m. 

Page 14

ITEM #2.



Minutes City Council Regular Meeting  August 08, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 7 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this 22th day of August 2023. 

   

ROBERT K. NELSON, MAYOR  

CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

JEANNA THOMPSON 

CITY SECRETARY 

 
 

Page 15

ITEM #2.



 

Bay City  Page 1 

CITY OF BAY CITY 
MINUTES  AUGUST 10, 2023 

COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS | 1901 
5th Street 

City Council Workshop 5:00 PM 

1901 5TH STREET 
BAY CITY TX,77414 

 

  

 

  

  Mayor   

  Robert K. Nelson   

Mayor Pro Tem  Councilman  Councilwoman 

Blayne Finlay  Bradley Westmoreland  Becca Sitz 

Councilman    Councilman 

Jim Folse    Benjamin Flores 

 

Through a united and collaborative effort, we seek to grow the City of Bay City with a diverse culture that is 
proud to call Bay City home. We envision a thriving family-centered community where citizens are involved in 

the future development of our city. We desire our citizens to work, play, worship and shop in the community in 
which we live. Visitors are welcomed and encouraged to enjoy the friendly environment and amenities the 

citizens and business owners have created together. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

ITEM #3.



Minutes City Council Workshop  August 10, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 2 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Robert K. Nelson at 5:00 pm. 

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 

PRESENT 
Mayor Robert K. Nelson 
Mayor Pro Tem Blayne Finlay 
Councilman Benjamin Flores 
Councilman Jim Folse 
Councilman Brad Westmoreland 
Councilwoman Becca Sitz 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

REGULAR ITEMS  FOR DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION AND / OR APPROVAL 

1. Receive and discuss the Bay City Community Development Budget Proposal for 
2024 Fiscal Year. Jessica Russell, Executive Director 

Jessica Russell, Executive Director, reviewed the Bay City Community Development 
Budget Proposal for 2024 which included items in support of Council 2040 plan 

2. Review and discuss Utility Rate Study and take any action deemed necessary. 

Megan Kirkand with NewGen Strategies reviewed the Utility Rate study that included 
the WIFIA funding. Coucilman Westmoreland was concerned that the projected 
housing growth for 2024 was optimistic and asked for a modification. Councilwoman 
Sitz asked about the cost of the rate study and if required and Ms. Kirkland replied that 
it was by TWDB. 

3. Report ~ Discuss, consider and review proposed amendments to Appendix B 
Fee Schedule.  

James Mason, Airport Manager, reviewed airport fees and explained that most were a 
4.9% increase. Krystal Mason, Assistant Public Works Director, reviewed building fees 
explaining that they were pass through fees from Bureau Veritas contract. Katy 
Plunkett, Municipal Court Administrator, stated that she is still waiting Legislature to 
update their fees. Samantha Denbow, Library Director, reviewed the library fees that 
eliminated some. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 17

ITEM #3.



Minutes City Council Workshop  August 10, 2023 

 

Bay City  Page 3 

Motion made by Councilwoman Sitz to adjourn, Seconded by Councilman 
Westmoreland. Voting Yea: Mayor Nelson, Mayor Pro Tem Finlay, Councilman Flores, 
Councilman Folse, Councilman Westmoreland, Councilwoman Sitz. Motion carried and the 
meeting adjourned at 6:21 pm. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED, this 22nd day of August 2023. 

   

ROBERT K. NELSON, MAYOR  
CITY OF BAY CITY, TEXAS 

JEANNA THOMPSON 
CITY SECRETARY 

 

Page 18

ITEM #3.



~ CONSIDER PLACING A PROPOSAL TO ADOPT A TAX RATE FOR THE 2024 

FISCAL YEAR AS AN ACTION ITEM ON THE AGENDA OF A FUTURE COUNCIL 

MEETING, SPECIFYING THEREIN THE DESIRED TAX RATE AND PUBLISHING 

NOTICE THEREOF. 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Tax Rate Information Adopted FY 2023 Proposed FY 2024 

Property Tax Rate .63500 .XXXXX 

No-New Revenue Tax Rate .59683 .56995 

No-New Revenue M&O Tax Rate .44118 .43058 

Debt Rate .15425 .13542 

Voter-Approval Tax Rate .65556 .58338 

De Minimis Rate .64497 .60988 

 
Debt service requirements for the City of Bay City are currently $.13542 of the current 
proposed property tax rate of $.XXXXX. The City has twelve outstanding debt issues. At the end 
of Fiscal Year 2024, outstanding general obligation bond and certificates of obligation bonds 
will be $58,487,000 however only $7,378,658 is currently supported by property taxes. 

  
 

 

Note: The new public hearing notice for the tax hearing requires a record vote on the 

proposed rate. 

Page 19

ITEM #5.



Page 20

ITEM #5.



~ CONSIDER SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED 2024 FISCAL 

YEAR TAX RATE FOR THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 (IF REQUIRED). 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 AT 6 PM 

 
Sec. 26.06. NOTICE, HEARING, AND VOTE ON TAX INCREASE. (a) A public hearing 

required by Section 26.05 may not be held before the fifth day after the date 

the notice of the public hearing is given.  

 

Page 21

ITEM #6.

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TX&Value=26.05


~ CONSIDER SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED 2024 FISCAL 

YEAR BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR THURSDAY, 

SEPTEMBER 7, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 AT 6 PM 

 

BUDGET HEARING WILL BE ON THE FOLLOWING: 

 

FY 2024 Proposed Budget- City of Bay City (Charter section 10.05) 

Five-Year Capital Improvement Program FY 2024-2028 (Charter section 10.16) 

 
All City Budget Information will be available online at www.cityofbaycity.org/193/Budget 

 

 

Page 22

ITEM #7.

http://www.cityofbaycity.org/193/Budget


~ CONSIDER SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE BAY CITY COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION’S PROPOSED 2024 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET FOR 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
  

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: 

 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 AT 6 PM 

 

FY 2024 Proposed Budget- Bay City Community Development Corporation 

 
 
All City Budget Information will be available online at www.cityofbaycity.org/193/Budget/ 

 

 

Page 23

ITEM #8.

http://www.cityofbaycity.org/193/Budget/


DISCUSS, CONSIDER, AND/OR APPROVE HARRISON, WALDROP, AND UHEREK, 

L.L.P. TO PROVIDE AUDIT SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF BAY CITY FOR THE 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 AUDIT SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND: 

An engagement letter is signed between the City and the Audit firm each year prior to the close of 

the fiscal year to be audited. This is a standard document that details the responsibility of 

management, the audit objectives, and the associated fees.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

The audit fee could change from year to year. The fee presented of $36,000 is the same as prior 

year audit period. An additional $4,000 will be incurred for a Single Audit if applicable. 

IMPACT ON COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY: 

It provides financial information to the public and other interested 3rd parties. Audits portray a 

City’s financial strength or weakness and determine whether a City’s financial statements are free 

of any material misstatements to the reader. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends City Council approve the engagement letter with Harrison, Waldrop, and 

Uherek (HWU). HWU has strong municipal audit experience and has the ability to rotate audit 

staff.  

ATTACHMENTS: Audit Engagement Letter 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

ITEM #9.



Page 25

ITEM #9.



Page 26

ITEM #9.



Page 27

ITEM #9.



Page 28

ITEM #9.



Page 29

ITEM #9.



Page 30

ITEM #9.



Page 31

ITEM #9.



Page 32

ITEM #9.



Page 33

ITEM #9.



Page 34

ITEM #9.



Listing of Governmental Clients and Latest Projects:

Scope of Years of
FYE Type Work Yellow Book Service

City of Bay City 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 10+
Single Audit

GFOA Submission
Bay City Community Development 

Corporation 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 10+
City of Cuero 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 25+
Cuero Development Corporation 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 25+
City of Edna 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 10+
City of Lockhart 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 5

GFOA Submission
City of Port Lavaca 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 15+

Single Audit
GFOA Submission

City of Victoria 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 35+
Single Audit

GFOA Submission
City of Wharton 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 15+

Single Audit
GFOA Submission

Wharton Economic Development 
Corporation 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 15+

Prep/Assist w/ Form 990/1099s
City of Yoakum 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 25+
City of Ganado 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 1
County of Victoria 12/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 35+

Single Audit
Special Engagement

Victoria County DD # 3 6/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 35+
Review of P/R Forms

Victoria County Navigation
  District 12/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 25+

Single Audit
County of Victoria 
  Juvenile Probation 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 20+
Dewitt County 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 30+

Single Audit
GFOA Submission

Dewitt County DD # 1 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 30+
Dewitt County Juvenile Probation 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 20+
Boling ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 4

Single Audit
East Bernard ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 15+
Goliad ISD 6/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 20+

Single Audit
Nursery ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 1
Palacios ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 1

Single Audit
Refugio ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 50+

Single Audit
Sealy ISD 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 10+

Single Audit
24th Judicial District Adult
  Probation Department 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 25+

Page 35

ITEM #9.



Listing of Governmental Clients and Latest Projects:

Scope of Years of
FYE Type Work Yellow Book Service

Port of Calhoun 6/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 10+
GFOA Submission

Port of Bay City 12/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 2
Golden Crescent Regional Planning
  Commission 8/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 20+

Single Audit
Calhoun County DD # 11 12/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 10+
Calhoun County WCID # 1 12/31 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 10+
Quail Creek MUD 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit no 35+
Jackson County Emergency
   Services District 9/30 Local Govt. Financial Statement Audit YES 5

Assist Prep. Tax & P/R Reports

Page 36

ITEM #9.


	Top
	ITEM #1.	Council Meeting Minutes of 7/25/23
	City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 230725

	ITEM #2.	Copy of Copy of Council Meeting Minutes of 8/8/23
	City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 230808

	ITEM #3.	Copy of Council Meeting Minutes of 8/10/23
	City Council Workshop Minutes 230810

	ITEM #4.	Public Works Report
	ITEM #5.	Copy of Tax Rate Proposed
	Executive Summary- Proposed Tax Rate FY 2024
	Tax Rate Sheet 2023-2024

	ITEM #6.	Copy of Set PH Date for tax
	Executive Summary- Set Tax Hearings FY 2024

	ITEM #7.	Copy of Set PH for Budget
	Executive Summary- Set Budget Hearings FY 2024

	ITEM #8.	Copy of Set PH BCCDC Budget
	Executive Summary- Set Budget Hearing_BCCDC FY 2024

	ITEM #9.	Copy of Copy of Audit Services 2021
	Executive Summary- Audit Services (1)
	HWU Agreemeny
	HWU Govt Client Listing_072122

	ITEM #10.	Property Bid
	Bottom

